Public Document Pack

Notice of meeting and agenda

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region
Deal Joint Committee
10.00 am Friday, 24th June, 2022

Virtual Meeting - via Microsoft Teams

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to watch the live
webcast.
The law allows the Joint Committee to consider some issues in private. Any items
under “Private Business” will not be published, although the decisions will be recorded
in the minute.

Contacts
Email:

jamie.macrae@edinburgh.gov.uk

Tel:

0131 553 8242

1. Appointments
1.1

Appointment of Convener

1.2

Appointment of Vice-Convener

1.3

Appointment of Chair of the Elected Member Oversight SubCommittee

2. Order of Business
2.1

Including any notices of motion and any other items of business
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting.

3. Declaration of Interests
3.1

Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.

4. Previous Minutes
4.1

Minute of the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region
Deal Joint Committee of 4 March 2022 – submitted for approval
as a correct record

7 - 12

5. Forward Planning
5.1

Joint Committee Work Programme – report by Dr Grace Vickers,
Chief Officer, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region
Deal Joint Committee - 24 June 2022

13 - 16

Page 2 of 5

6. Items for Consideration
6.1

A720 Sheriffhall Update – report by Fiona Brown, Director of
Transport Strategy and Analysis, Transport Scotland

17 - 22

6.2

Edinburgh Innovation Hub (East Lothian Council / Queen Margaret
University) VAT Reinvestment – report by Catherine Molloy, Project
Manager, East Lothian Council and Steve Scott, Director of Campus
& Commercial Services, Queen Margaret University, Edinburgh

23 - 30

6.3

City Region Deal Progress Report – report by Dr Grace Vickers,
Chief Officer, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal

31 - 46

6.4

Green/Freeport bid for Edinburgh and South East Scotland – report
by Dr Grace Vickers, Chief Officer, Edinburgh and South East
Scotland City Region Deal

47 - 50

Gavin King
Clerk

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region
Deal Joint Committee - 24 June 2022

Page 3 of 5

Membership
The City of Edinburgh Council

Scottish Borders Council

Councillor Cammy Day

Councillor Euan Jardine

East Lothian Council

West Lothian Council

Councillor Norman Hampshire

Councillor Lawrence Fitzpatrick

Fife Council

Higher/Further Education Consortium

Councillor David Ross

Prof Peter Mathieson

Midlothian Council

Regional Enterprise Council

Councillor Russell Imrie

Claire Pattullo
Garry Clark

Further information
If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact
Jamie Macrae, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre 2.1, Waverley Court, 4 East
Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG, Tel 0131 553 8242, email
jamie.macrae@edinburgh.gov.uk.
The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting can be viewed online by going
to https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk .

Webcasting of Joint Committee meetings
Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site – at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part
of the meeting is being filmed.
The Joint Committee is a Data Controller under current Data Protection legislation. We
broadcast Joint Committee meetings to fulfil our public task obligation to enable
members of the public to observe the democratic process. Data collected during this
webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy including, but
not limited to, for the purpose of keeping historical records and making those records
available via the Council’s internet site.

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region
Deal Joint Committee - 24 June 2022

Page 4 of 5

Any information presented by individuals to the Joint Committee at a meeting, in
addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical record, will also be
held and used by the Joint Committee in connection with the relevant matter until that
matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and other
connected processes). Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as part of
the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above.
If you have any queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or
storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial
damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services
committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk.

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region
Deal Joint Committee - 24 June 2022

Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4.1
Minutes
Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal Joint Committee
Microsoft Teams
10.00am, Friday 4 March 2022
Present:
Fife Council – Councillor David Alexander and Councillor David Ross
City of Edinburgh Council – Councillor Cammy Day (substituting for Councillor
Adam McVey)
Midlothian Council – Councillor Russell Imrie (in the Chair)
East Lothian Council – Councillor John McMillan (substituting for Councillor
Norman Hampshire)
West Lothian Council – Councillor Tom Conn (substituting for Councillor Lawrence
Fitzpatrick)
Scottish Borders Council – Councillor Mark Rowley
Regional Enterprise Council – Garry Clark and Claire Pattullo
Higher/Further Education Consortium – Professor Peter Mathieson
In attendance:
Dr Grace Vickers, Chief Executive, Midlothian Council
Monica Patterson, Chief Executive, East Lothian Council
Netta Meadows, Chief Executive, Scottish Borders Council
Andy Nichol, City Region Deal Programme Manager, City of Edinburgh Council
Graeme Rigg, City Region Deal PMO, City of Edinburgh Council
David Baxter, City Region Deal PMO, City of Edinburgh Council
David Hanna, City Region Deal PMO, City of Edinburgh Council
Amir Darwesh, City Region Deal PMO, City of Edinburgh Council
Lisa Howden, Accountant, City of Edinburgh Council
Jamie Macrae, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council

Page 7

Karl Chapman, Head of Heritage, Culture Venues & Museums, City of Edinburgh
Council
Paul Lawrence, Executive Director of Place, City of Edinburgh Council
Kevin Anderson, Executive Director, Place, Midlothian Council
Craig McCorriston, Head of Planning, Economic Development and Regeneration,
West Lothian Council
Jenni Craig, Service Director Customer & Communities, Scottish Borders Council
Jarmo Eskelinen, Director of Data-Driven Innovation, University of Edinburgh
John Scott, Head of Delivery, Data-Driven Innovation Programme, University of
Edinburgh
Mark Graham, Technical Director at Social and Human Capital Coalition, University
of Edinburgh
Abby Manz, Impact Strategy Manager, Smart Data Foundry
IMPACT Scotland – Joanna Baker (Executive Director), Jerry Mungall (Development
Director) and Gavin Reid (Chief Executive of Scottish Chamber Orchestra)
Apologies
Councillor Norman Hampshire (East Lothian Council) and Councillor Adam McVey
(City of Edinburgh Council).

1.

Minutes

Decision
To approve the minute of the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal
Joint Committee of 3 December 2021 as a correct record.

2.

Work Programme

The Work Programme was presented and detailed the planned dates for the City
Region Deal business case approvals by Joint Committee.
Decision
To note the planned dates for future business for the City Region Deal Joint
Committee.
(Reference – Work Programme, submitted.)

3.

IMPACT Scotland – Dunard Centre Business Case

Joanna Baker, Executive Director, IMPACT Scotland, gave a presentation on the
Dunard Centre and presented the report, which sought approval for the Final
Business Case for Dunard Centre, a new 1000 seat concert hall and performance
venue on Edinburgh’s St Andrew Square. The Dunard Centre would be home to the
Edinburgh and South East of Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee – 4 March 2022

Page 8

Scottish Chamber Orchestra, a key venue for Edinburgh International Festival and
offers the ideal conditions for excellence in music making, delivering performance,
educational and outreach programmes to inspire and support audiences of all ages.
Decision
1)

To approve the Summary Business Case (SBC) included as an Appendix to
the report by the Executive Director of IMPACT Scotland.

2)

To note that the paper followed the Business Case for ‘IMPACT Centre’
submitted and approved by this committee in 2019 to secure £25m from the
Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal.

3)

To note that the revisions in the report related to the revised design scheme
for the building and associated business plan for the venue.

4)

To note that City of Edinburgh Council’s Development Management SubCommittee granted planning approval and listed building consent for the
scheme in November 2021.

5)

To agree to write to Carol Greigor to thank her and the Dunard Fund/trustees
for their support and private financial contribution.

6)

To agree to a future report on inclusion and what would be done to ensure that
young people from all areas of the city were able to access the facility.

(Reference – report by the Executive Director of IMPACT Scotland, submitted.)

4.

City Region Deal Benefits Realisation Implementation Plan
update

In March 2021 the Smart Data Foundry (formally known as Global Open Finance
Centre of Excellence (GOFCoE)) successfully applied for Scottish Government
regional recovery and renewal funding to undertake a: “feasibility study for a
public/private sector data platform to assess the outcomes and impacts of the
Edinburgh and South East of Scotland (ESES) City Region Deal.”
Completed in early August 2021, one of the key recommendations of this study was
the need to examine further, for the purposes of the Scottish and UK Governments
Quinquennial review of the City Region Deal in 2023, what needed to be in place and
when to best report outputs and any impacts by 2023 and thereafter (particularly
given that projects across the “five” City Region Deal Themes are at different stages
of implementation).
Mark Graham and Abby Manz presented the full City Region Deal Benefits
Realisation Implementation Plan to the Joint Committee for approval.

Edinburgh and South East of Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee – 4 March 2022

Page 9

Decision
To approve the report’s recommendations and their implementation by the City
Region Deal PMO notably:
i)

To appoint as Senior Responsible Officer for the Benefits Realisation
Programme by the City Region Deal Directors’ Group.

ii)

To appoint a Benefits Realisation Officer to measure and report benefits to the
standard described in the Benefits Realisation Plan.

iii)

To develop a consistent and comparable outputs, outcomes and impacts
reporting framework; prior to circulating for wider review by CRD project.

(Reference – report by the Head of Delivery, Data-Driven Innovation Programme,
University of Edinburgh and Senior Responsible Officer for the Benefits Realisation
Plan for the City Region Deal, submitted.)

5.

City Region Deal Progress Report

The Joint Committee considered a report that advised of progress across the City
Region Deal Programme.
A RAG (Red, Amber, Green) scale was assigned to programmes and projects by the
Partnership Management Office (PMO), as well as scores for inclusive growth and
partnership working. In this update, the overall status was assigned as ‘Green’ and
there were no actions for the Joint Committee.
Decision
To note the progress across the City Region Deal Programme.
(Reference – report by the Chief Officer, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal, submitted.)

6.

Consultation on Draft National Planning Framework 4:
Proposed Response

Craig McCorriston updated the committee on the Consultation on Draft National
Planning Framework 4 (NPF4), and shared the proposed consultation response, due
to be submitted by 31 March 2022. NPF4 would replace strategic development plans
as an element of the development plan for all parts of Scotland. As well as replacing
strategic development plan, NPF4 would replace Scottish Planning Policy and, in
doing so, introduce a proposed suite of 33 new and revised national planning
policies.
Decision
1)

To note the publication for consultation by the Scottish Government of a
proposed National Planning Framework 4.

Edinburgh and South East of Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee – 4 March 2022

Page 10

2)

To note that when approved NPF4 would replace the SESplan Strategic
Development Plan, National Planning Framework 3 and Scottish Planning
Policy.

3)

To note that comments on the proposed NPF4 were invited.

4)

To note the proposed response to the consultation, attached as Appendix 2 to
the report.

5)

To note that the proposed response remained subject to on-going consultation
with City Region Deal partners.

6)

To agree that the Elected Member Oversight Committee be delegated to
approve the final response, noting that the EMOC may also wish to delegate
to a specific officer of one of the constituent councils in order to complete the
response by the deadline of 31 March 2022.

(Reference – report by the Head of Planning, Economic Development &
Regeneration, West Lothian Council, submitted.)

7.

Data-Driven Innovation progress update

A presentation on Data-Driven Innovation (DDI) progress was provided Peter
Mathieson, Principal and Vice Chancellor, University of Edinburgh and Jarmo
Eskelinen, Director of Data-Driven Innovation, University of Edinburgh.
The Joint Committee was updated on the planned roll out of the six DDI Hubs in
Edinburgh over the next 18 months (two of which were currently operational). The
programme continued to perform beyond its original targets, and had supported
wider regional activities including the City Region Deal’s Benefits Realisation
Programme, the DDI Skills Gateway and the development of the long-term Regional
Prosperity Framework. Details were provided of the DDI Programme’s Future Vision
and the links with the Regional Prosperity Framework’s Nine Big Moves.
Decision
To note the presentation.
(Reference – presentation by the Principal and Vice Chancellor, University of
Edinburgh and Director of Data-Driven Innovation, University of Edinburgh,
submitted.)

Edinburgh and South East of Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee – 4 March 2022

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5.1
Edinburgh and South East Scotland
City Region Deal Joint Committee

10 am, Friday 24 June 2022

Work Programme for City Region Deal Joint Committee
Item number 5.1

Executive Summary
This paper outlines the planned dates for City Region Deal business case approvals by
Joint Committee.

Dr Grace Vickers
Chief Officer, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal
Contact: Andy Nichol, Programme Manager, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal
E-mail: andy.nichol@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4461

Page 13

Report

Work Programme for City Region Deal Joint Committee
1.

Recommendations

1.1

To note the planned dates for future business for the City Region Deal Joint
Committee.

2.

Background

2.1

The City Region Deal partners and Government are working towards business case
approval timelines, as set out in this report. This matches with the timeline for
drawing down funds from Government over the 15 years of the City Region Deal as
set out in the Financial Plan agreed in summer 2018, and the grant offer letter for
2022/23.

2.2

In addition to the business cases, other reports that are expected to be submitted to
Joint Committee are included in the work programme.

3.

Main report

3.1

The work programme for Joint Committee meetings that partners are currently
working towards is shown in Table 1. The dates are subject to business cases
being approved by: The Scottish Government; the UK Government; the relevant
Boards within the City Region Deal structure; and the relevant Council committees
and/or Higher and Further Education Courts, prior to Joint Committee consideration.

Page 14

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 2

Table 1: Work Programme for Joint Committee
Joint Committee Date
24 June 2022

Reports for consideration
•
•

•
2 September 2022

2 December 2022

3 March 2023

A720 Sheriffhall roundabout progress update
Edinburgh Innovation Hub (East Lothian Council
/ Queen Margaret University) VAT
Reinvestment
Green Freeport bid for the Edinburgh and South
East Scotland City Region

•

City Region Deal Annual Report 2021/22

•

Regional Prosperity Framework Implementation
Plan

•

A720 Sheriffhall roundabout progress update

•

Integrated Regional Employability and Skills
Programme Update (presentation)

•

Data-Driven Innovation Programme Update
(presentation)
Benefits Realisation six-monthly update.

•

3.2 The A720 City Bypass grade separation of Sheriffhall Roundabout is being managed
and delivered by Transport Scotland. Transport Scotland are scheduled to provide
updates on progress to the Transport Appraisal Board, as well as the Executive
Board and Joint Committee every six months.

4.

Financial impact

4.1 There is no financial impact relating to this report. Financial cases are being set out
in detail in the respective business cases. Financial contributions that are required by
partner organisations for projects are being requested in separate reports to councils
or courts prior to being taken to Joint Committee for approval.

5.

Alignment with Sustainable, Inclusive Growth Ambitions

5.1 Inclusion and sustainability are key drivers for the City Region Deal, and strategic
added value scores have been included for each project. Business cases for projects
included demonstrate how they will reduce inequalities and tackle the inclusion
challenges specific to the city region.
5.2 The City Region Deal Benefits Realisation Plan (BRP) was approved on 4
September 2020. This incorporates indicators that align with the Scottish
Government’s Inclusive Growth Framework. The impact on equalities, human rights
and sustainability will also be measured. Six-monthly updates will be provided to
Joint Committee from March 2023.
5.3 Scottish and UK Government provided joint guidance for project owners on
managing potential carbon emissions associated with Scottish City Region and

Page 15

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 3

Regional Growth Deal projects. It accords with HM Treasury Green Book
requirements and supports the quantification and minimisation of whole life carbon
and the identification of potential barriers to achieving net zero. This will form an
important part of regular reporting through the Benefits Realisation Plan.

6.

Background reading/external references

6.1 City Region Deal Document: August 2018

7. Appendices
None.

Page 16

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 4

Agenda Item 6.1
Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal Joint Committee

10am, Friday 24 June 2022

A720 Sheriffhall Roundabout: Background Summary
Report and Progress Update
Item number 6.1

Executive Summary
The Joint Committee has asked that Transport Scotland (TS) provide a background
summary report and progress update for the A720 Sheriffhall Roundabout project, which is
being delivered as part of the Edinburgh and South East Scotland (ESES) City Region
Deal, to inform the members of the Joint Committee of the progress and current status of
the project.
The ESES City Region Deal includes the following commitment – “The Scottish
Government is committed to investing £140m on strategic transport improvements as part
of the City Region deal. This specifically includes up to £120m to support improvements to
the A720 City Bypass for the grade separation of Sheriffhall Roundabout.”
The proposed Scheme is a grade-separated junction arrangement, which separates local
traffic from the strategic traffic on the A720, that will provide high quality active travel
facilities to address severance challenges and deliver a step change in accessibility for
walking and cycling. It will also improve road safety, and will relieve the significant
congestion, as well as journey times and journey time reliability for all road users.
Fiona Brown
Director of Transport Strategy and Analysis, Transport Scotland
Contact: Andy Nichol, Programme Manager, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal
E-mail: andy.nichol@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4461

Page 17

Report

A720 Sheriffhall Roundabout
1.

Recommendations
Note progress of the proposed Scheme as detailed in this background summary
report and progress update.

2.

Background

2.1

The existing A720 Sheriffhall roundabout is currently the only junction on the
Edinburgh City Bypass that is not grade-separated, which means the City Bypass is
at the same level as the A7 and A6106 local approach roads. This at-grade, six-way
junction, often experiences significant queuing, especially during peak hours.

2.2

The purpose of the proposed Scheme is to separate local traffic from strategic traffic
on the bypass, thus improving traffic flow journey times, journey time reliability and
safety for all users. The upgrading of the Sheriffhall Roundabout will remove a
barrier to both local and strategic movements and provide benefits for businesses,
travellers and local communities, as well as reducing severance across the junction
for all travellers including those travelling by bus, walking and cycling. Additionally,
grade separating the Junction will provide a continuous uninterrupted dual
carriageway along the Edinburgh City Bypass, providing consistency with the other
junctions which are all grade separated.

2.3

The proposed Scheme is being delivered as part of the Edinburgh and South East
Scotland City Region Deal (ESESCRD) signed in 2018, which includes Scottish
Government funding for strategic transport improvements in the next 15 years,
including up to £120 million specifically to support improvements for the grade
separation of Sheriffhall Roundabout. The ESESCRD Joint Committee ratified their
support for the proposed Sheriffhall Roundabout Scheme at their meeting on 3
September 2021.

3.

Main report

Overview of the A720 Sheriffhall Roundabout Scheme
3.1

The proposed Scheme is a grade-separated junction arrangement providing new
high-quality grade-separated active travel routes across the junction for all approach
roads that connect with the wider network. It separates local traffic from the
strategic traffic on the A720, relieving the significant congestion at this location,

Page 18

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 2

improving road safety, journey times and journey time reliability for all road users.
The proposed Scheme also facilitates planned development in the ESES region.
3.2

Improved operating conditions at the junction will provide significant improvements
in bus journey time and also reliability compared to the present, providing
opportunities for operators to plan for improved services. The proposed Scheme
also provides additional ducting to facilitate future full signalisation and enable the
future deployment of bus priority signal systems should partners desire.

3.3

Modelling the effects of the proposed Scheme indicates a reduction in average
journey times, for all road traffic including buses, on the local roads passing through
the roundabout at year of opening, compared to the “no-scheme” scenario, by a:
•

30% decrease on the A7 northbound (from 8.8 minutes to 6.2 minutes)

•

23% decrease on the A7 southbound (from 7.3 minutes to 5.6 minutes)

•

8% decrease on the A6106 northbound (from 2.8 minutes to 2.6 minutes)

•

72% decrease on the A6106 southbound (from 9.7 minutes to 2.7 minutes)

3.4

Further to a request from City Region Deal partners, Transport Scotland undertook
a review of the public transport and active travel elements, which was published in
December 2020 and confirmed that every practical opportunity had been taken to
maximise the benefits of these elements within the proposed Scheme whilst not
creating additional impacts for local landowners, residents and business.

3.5

The active travel elements in the proposed Scheme will provide high quality facilities
to address severance challenges and deliver a step change in accessibility for
walking and cycling.

National and Regional Context
3.6

Sheriffhall is an important part of the transport network in the South East of
Scotland and sits within a wider national and regional context, as outlined below.

3.7

The grade-separation of Sheriffhall formed one of a number of recommendations of
the first Strategic Transport Projects Review (STPR1) within the ESES region which
together provided a multi-modal package of rail, park and ride and other
interventions.

3.8

Transport Scotland is also taking forward the second Strategic Transport Projects
Review.

3.9

It is within this wider national and regional multi-modal package of interventions to
enhance the operation and safety of the strategic and regional transport networks
that the grade-separation of Sheriffhall is being taken forward to address issues on
a key route in the region, supporting the communities and economies served by the
A720.

Next Steps/Timetable
3.10 The draft Orders and Environmental Statement for the proposed Scheme were
published on 5 December 2019. On closure of the statutory consultation period on
31 January 2020, there were 2,771 objections to the draft Orders.

Page 19

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 3

3.11 In recognition of the high number and the “climate change” content of
representations received, it was agreed with City Region Deal partners that the
proposed Scheme would be reviewed to ascertain whether further improvements to
active travel and public transport facilities would be feasible – this is the review
referenced above under point 3.4.
3.12 Following a period of extensive consideration of the points raised in objection,
Transport Scotland has now concluded the process of issuing formal responses to
all those who submitted an objection.
3.13 Transport Scotland remains of the view that the proposed Scheme is justified and
forms a balanced component of the Scottish Government’s transport plan, sitting
alongside its carbon reduction aspirations, in improving local and regional traffic
movements and supporting economic growth. Whilst Transport Scotland shall
continue to engage with objectors, given the nature and volume of the objections, it
is unlikely that any further objections will be resolved without recourse to a Public
Local Inquiry (PLI). Transport Scotland is also of the view that a PLI is the most
expedient method of moving the proposed Scheme forward. Excessive time spent
in pre-inquiry negotiations will unnecessarily prolong the statutory processes
necessary to deliver and construct the proposed Scheme.
3.14 Consequently, Transport Scotland, on 28 March 2022, commenced the process to
seek Ministerial approval and make arrangements with the Planning and
Environmental Appeals Division (DPEA) for a PLI to be held. On 26 May 2022 the
DPEA has appointed a Reporter to take forward the PLI for the proposed Scheme.
3.15 Timescales for the prospective PLI are now outwith the control of Transport
Scotland, and shall be set by the independent Reporter appointed by the DPEA,
however it is expected that the PLI will be held later this year.
3.16 Delivery of the proposed Scheme can only commence if approved under the
relevant statutory procedures. Only following completion of statutory consents can a
programme be set for delivery of the proposed Scheme.

4.

Financial impact

4.1 The City Region Deal, signed in August 2018, includes a commitment by the Scottish
Government of up to £120m to support improvements to the A720 City Bypass for
the grade separation of Sheriffhall Roundabout. Any financial risk to deliver the
project sits with Scottish Ministers and not the City Deal partners.

5.

Alignment with Sustainable, Inclusive Growth Ambitions

5.1 The proposed A720 Sheriffhall scheme will provide a significant strategic contribution
to the City Region Deal Themes 1 (Accelerating inclusive growth), 2 (Removing the
physical barriers to growth) and 4 (Targeted employability and skills interventions).
5.2 It will also provide opportunities for greater levels of movement by public transport,
complemented by wider proposals being progressed by partners through the
emerging Bus Service Improvement Partnership for the region and work to be

Page 20

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 4

progressed through the Scottish Government’s Bus Partnership Funding award to the
region.
5.3 The multi-modal design of the proposed scheme will also help facilitate the delivery
of future transport projects such as the proposed Orbital Bus route (east/west along
the A720 and currently part of a bid to the Bus Partnership Fund, October 2021) and
the potential south-east extension of the Edinburgh tram network to Dalkeith.
5.4 In addition, during the construction phase, the community benefit arrangements will
provide opportunities for local employment and training.
5.5 An environmental assessment was undertaken and an Environmental Statement
published by Transport Scotland in December 2019 for formal comment.

6. Background reading/external references
6.1 Further background/reading includes the following:
6.1.1

City Region Deal Document, August 2018

6.1.2 Draft Orders and Environmental Statement - A720 Sheriffhall Roundabout
scheme, Transport Scotland, December 2019
6.1.3 A720 Sheriffhall - Public Transport & Active Travel Review Report, Transport
Scotland, December 2020

7. Appendices
None.

Page 21

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6.2
Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal Joint Committee

10am, Friday 24 June 2022

Edinburgh Innovation Hub (East Lothian Council /
Queen Margaret University) VAT Reinvestment
Item number 6.2

Executive Summary
The Joint Venture Structure (concluded in April 2022) between East Lothian Council and
Queen Margaret University secured financial and commercial advantages for the delivery
of the Edinburgh Innovation Hub. One of the key advantages is that the Joint Venture
Structure enables the Joint Venture to exercise an Option to Tax on the construction and
the development element of the Hub project. This enables the Joint Venture to reclaim the
Value Added Tax in accordance with HMRC regulations, estimated at Full Business Case
in 2021 as £6.002m.
The Joint Venture seeks approval from the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region
Deal Joint Committee to reinvest the reclaimable VAT into the development and construction
elements of the Hub project.
Whilst paragraphs 3.6 to 3.9 of this Report detail the positive impact the reinvestment will
have on the Edinburgh Innovation Hub project costs, these can be summarised as follows
1. Enhance the project outcomes through targeted additionality in the design and
specification to further the value proposition to end users.
2. Extend projects performance on sustainability and Net Zero Carbon.
3. Contain impact of construction cost inflation
Catherine Molloy
Project Manager, East Lothian Council
E-mail: | cmolloy1@eastlothian.gov.uk
Steve Scott
Director of Campus & Commercial Services, Queen Margaret University, Edinburgh
E-mail: sscott@qmu.ac.uk

Page 23

Report

Edinburgh Innovation Hub (East Lothian Council /
Queen Margaret University) VAT Reinvestment
1.

Recommendations

1.1

To note that the Joint Venture Structure (“JV”) between East Lothian Council (ELC)
and Queen Margaret University (QMU) enables the JV to exercise an Option to Tax
on the construction and the development element of the Edinburgh Innovation Hub
(“Hub”) project which enables the JV to reclaim the Value Added Tax (“VAT”) in
accordance with HMRC regulations.

1.1

To note that the JV is currently exercising the Option to Tax in accordance with the
HMRC regulations which will offer the ability for the JV to reclaim the VAT monies on
the Hub project costs.

1.2

To note the proposed schedule of investment and returns at paragraphs 3.6 to 3.9
which include enhancing the Hub project outcomes through targeted additionality in
the design and specification to enhance the value proposition that improves the
experience for the end user.

1.3

To approve the reinvestment of the reclaimed VAT monies into the Hub Project costs,
previously identified as £6.002 million in 2021.

2.

Background

2.1

On 4 June 2021, the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint
Committee approved the Full Business Case (“FBC”) submitted by ELC and QMU.
The FBC sought approval to secure funding for, and enact, the development and
delivery by ELC and QMU of the Hub. The Hub is adjacent to the QMU campus at
Craighall on land owned by ELC.

2.2

The FBC demonstrated that the Hub will be a bespoke and highly targeted
infrastructure and property offer, together with the specialist services required to
capture, support and grow companies working in fast-moving innovation-led sectors.
It will comprise a serviced multi-occupied laboratory and office building. The design
concept for the Hub is for a facility that anticipates success and the need for
subsequent ‘grow-on’ expansion. A number of ‘innovation hub’ facilities in the UK
have not exploited their full potential because success and the concomitant need for
contiguous expansion was not anticipated. To deliver expansion capability, a twophase approach to the development of the Hub building has been adopted. The
development of the Hub will unlock a significant opportunity for the JV to develop
ELC’s landholdings adjacent to the campus into the Edinburgh Innovation Park

Page 24

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 2

(“EIP”). The EIP would be a science and technology park, aligned with the University
and the Hub that will support the growth of high value added and innovative
businesses including those in food & drink related sectors that would directly mature
in and benefit from the activities of the Hub. The wider development also includes
infrastructure improvements, being the delivery of a grade separated junction, 1500
new homes (including affordable homes) a new primary school and community
centre. A Segregated Active Travel Corridor will also improve connectivity and
accessibility throughout the development,
2.3

The FBC noted at paragraph 3.3.1 that
“it is the intention of the parties to establish a formal joint venture company…. to take
forward the development, management and operation of the hub and any future EIP.
The principal reasons for adopting this approach are:
● It offers a single point of interface (landlord) for tenants of the hub and future EIP
while providing confidence that both QMU and ELC stand behind and are committed
to the obligations and service being offered to tenants;
● An arms-length vehicle enables more nimble day-to-day management and
governance structures to be put in place to respond to the rapidly evolving needs of
the SME and innovation sector while retaining appropriate strategic control and
influence for the partners;
● Over time, the JV vehicle may offer a desirable route to leverage in third party
commercial investment on a structured basis;
● It provides appropriate financial and commercial incentives for both parties to invest
in the success of the hub and EIP via their respective academic and land assets;
● It offers flexibility in recruitment of appropriate management and leadership resource
to grow the offer and its standing in its key target markets over time; and
● A review of case study evidence suggests this is the most common formula for similar
successful projects elsewhere in the UK and further afield with established
advantages.

2.4

The FBC also noted at para 4.3.1 that all VAT is recoverable (subject to confirmation
from tax advisors).

2.5

The tax advice was that, on adopting a specific JV structure, (detailed in Appendix 1),
the JV could exercise an Option to Tax on the construction and the development
element of the Hub project which enabled the JV to reclaim the VAT. On that basis
and for other financial and commercial advantages (as captured in the FBC), the JV
structure and supporting legal documents were concluded in April 2022.

3.

Main report

3.1 The delivery of the Hub remains on programme, becoming operational in summer
2025. Recent milestones achieved include (1) the appointment of the design team and
(2) advancing critical documents to support the commercial success of the Hub. These

Page 25

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 3

include the Operational Business Plan, the Marketing Strategy and EIP development
options.
3.2 The timing of the appointment of the design team is critical in terms of the interface
with the VAT position. There is a time sensitivity as the design brief has been
provided to the design team who will commence the design process, scheduled for
completion in November 2022. Approval of the reinvestment of the reclaimed VAT
would allow the additionality (as detailed in paragraphs 3.6 to 3.9 below) to be
designed in at the outset. Furthermore, it will avoid abortive design work or late stage
design changes that would risk programme delay and cost increases.
3.3 To enable the recovery of the VAT the JV have submitted to HMRC:•

An application to register Edinburgh Innovation Park Hub Operating
Company for VAT;

•

An application to register Edinburgh Innovation Park Hub Development
Company for VAT; and

•

Supporting tax forms being:
o The 1614A form
o The VAT5L form.

3.4

Once HMRC have allocated the VAT number to the two companies within the JV
structure (Hub Devco and HubOpco) than the JV is in a position to start to reclaim
the VAT.

3.5

The JV recognise that any additionality must offer an enhancement of the Hub that
benefits the end user. Paragraphs 3.6 to 3.9 below provide more detail on proposals
that would all contribute to an enhancement of the Hub for the benefit of the end user.

3.6

Design & Specification enhancement
Improved functionality, infrastructure and flexibility focussed on end user experience.
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Provision of office furniture in some office and write up areas.
Extended fitting out in the Hub Café.
Vibration – improved (lower) level of vibration performance than previously
briefed .
IT Managed service quality and functionality enhancements including
possibility of an improved resilient connection.
Extended access control to individual suites. The current design brief limits
access control to floors and wings with individual suites requiring a key. If
access control were extended to all suites then this would provide a functional
enhancement for tenant companies.
Improved ventilation in the freezer farm to mechanical instead of a naturally
ventilated solution.
Provide some demised gas bottle stores with gas lines and manifolds to
increase functionality for incoming tenant companies.
It is proposed that 17.5% of the VAT amount (4% of the project costs) is set
aside against this element of the project.

Page 26

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 4

3.7

Sustainability Enhancement
Improving the sustainability performance/carbon emission impact of the project.
•

•
•

•

•

3.8

Consider the whole life carbon costs of the project, including potential to
deliver against net zero carbon targets in line with the Climate Change
(Emissions Reduction Targets) (Scotland) Act 2019 and the Scottish City Deal
carbon guidance.
Consider elements of the Mechanical and Electrical plant and equipment
installation for higher standards of energy performance and efficiency.
Opportunity to make the metering strategy more comprehensive and higher
specification in order to achieve long-term operational and financial
advantages. The provision of offices and laboratories, (CL1 and CL2) mean
that usage of electricity will vary very considerably between occupiers. An
apportionment approach would be inequitable and therefore the metering
strategy will be to ensure that all electricity used by tenant companies is
recharged on an accurate and equitable basis.
Make more robust assumptions regarding the extent to which electric car
charging points are installed and are ready for use immediately following
Practical Completion.
It is proposed that 20% of the VAT amount (4% of the project costs) is set
aside against this element of the project.

Inflation risk
•

•

•
•

•
•

The construction industry in Scotland and the UK is currently experiencing
unprecedented adverse market conditions, which is leading to significant rises
in tender prices for a wide range of materials. Complications resulting from the
withdrawal of the UK from the European Union have exacerbated this situation
and continue to impact the UK construction sector.
Key factors contributing to the pricing increases include contractors no longer
being able to absorb strong upward pressure from input costs, rising demand,
logistics problems and materials and labour shortages. In particular, materials
price rises are likely to be an ongoing concern due to worldwide supply issues.
This is being reflected in recent tender returns, which have indicated an
increase beyond expectation for tender prices.
Tendering contractors are making specific reference to time periods for the
supply of labour and materials, a recent change in diesel rules, the current
conflict in Ukraine and potential shortages of materials from China and
elsewhere.
Specific areas of major increases include groundworks, steel (structural and
steel product), metal cladding, timber, insulation and fire protection.
When the cost for the Hub project was reviewed in January, there was an
estimated £1.5 million increase to the Hub project costs, which was primarily
down to increased inflationary pressures. the contingency amount of £2.8m
provided a level of protection from this however this would reduce the
contingency to £1.3m which would be circa 6% and therefore will be a
significant challenge at this early stage of the project. Since January,

Page 27

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 5

•

inflationary pressures have continued to escalate and it is likely that the cost
of the project has risen further due to market conditions.
We have evidence that inflation can be shown to be affecting projects between
10% and 15% beyond BCIS predictions. We therefore recommend that to
provide further protection to delivering the quality product set out in the brief
we should set aside 62.5% of the VAT amount (12.5% of the project costs) to
deal with this significant project risk.

3.9 To summarise, paragraphs 3.4 to 3.8 above set out a menu of possible enhancements
that overall will contribute to the Hub having a greater impact, thereby being a more
attractive proposition to the end-users and positively impacting the viability of the Hub.
Furthermore the menu of possible enhancement will allow consideration of options to
contribute to the achievement of the Climate Change (Emissions Reduction Targets)
(Scotland) Act 2019 net-zero carbon target whilst offering a level of protection against
construction inflation.’

4.

Financial impact

4.1 Through the approval of the FBC, East Lothian Council and Queen Margaret University
secured funding of £30 million being £28.5 million from UK Government, £1.4 million
from the Scottish Government
4.2 East Lothian Council has provided a capital contribution of £10 million (being £6 million
for the construction of the Hub and £4 million for the acquisition of the land on which
the Hub and wider EIP will be located).
4.3 Approval of the reinvestment of reclaimed VAT monies will enhance the value
proposition for the end user as detailed in Paragraphs 3.4 to 3.9 above

5.

Alignment with Sustainable, Inclusive Growth Ambitions

5.1 The proposals align with sustainable inclusive growth ambitions by supporting the
propositions set out in Paragraph 3.8

6. Background reading/external references
6.1

Edinburgh and South-East Scotland City Region Deal Document, August 2018.

6.2 Queen Margaret University Innovation Hub for Food, Drink and Health Sciences
Business Case - Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint
Committee 4 June 2021

7. Appendices
7.1

Joint Venture diagram

Page 28

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 6

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6.3
Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal Joint Committee

10 am, Friday 24 June 2022

City Region Deal Progress Report
Item number 6.3

Executive Summary
The Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal progress report gives an
indication of progress across the City Region Deal programme.
In this update, the overall status is assigned as “Green”. There are no actions required
from the Joint Committee.

Dr Grace Vickers
Chief Officer, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal
Contact: Andy Nichol, Programme Manager, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal
E-mail: andy.nichol@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4461

Page 31

Report

City Region Deal Progress Report
1.

Recommendations

1.1 To note the progress across the City Region Deal Programme.

2.

Background

2.1 This progress report is being used across the City Region Deal’s governance
structure to monitor progress across all aspects of the City Region Deal. It is updated
and shared with Government on a weekly basis and is taken to all Board meetings. A
RAG (Red, Amber, Green) scale is assigned to programmes and projects by the
Programme Management Office (PMO), as well as scores for inclusive growth and
partnership working.
2.2 Tables and 2 show the guidelines that are used when determine RAG statuses and
scores:
Table 1: RAG Status Guidelines
T: Status against timeline set out in business case/implementation plan;
B: Status against budget for the current financial year

Page 32

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 2

Table 2: Strategic Added Value Score

3.

Main report

3.1 The performance report is shown in Appendix 1. The overall status of the City Region
Deal is assigned as “Green”. There are no actions required from the Joint Committee.

4.

Financial impact

4.1 The overall cumulative total of Grant claimed for the Deal to date (2018 – present) is
£226 million. This total includes the funding issued by Transport Scotland and
Scottish Government Housing. Claims are made to Government on a quarterly basis.

5.

Alignment with Sustainable, Inclusive Growth Ambitions

5.1 Inclusion and sustainability are key drivers for the City Region Deal, and strategic
added value scores have been included for each project. Business cases for projects
included demonstrate how they will reduce inequalities and tackle the inclusion
challenges specific to the city region.
5.2 The City Region Deal Benefits Realisation Plan (BRP) was approved on 4
September 2020. This incorporates indicators that align with the Scottish
Government’s Inclusive Growth Framework. The impact on equalities, human rights
and sustainability will also be measured. Six-monthly updates will be provided to
Joint Committee from March 2023.
5.3 Scottish and UK Government provided joint guidance for project owners on
managing potential carbon emissions associated with Scottish City Region and
Regional Growth Deal projects. It accords with HM Treasury Green Book
requirements and supports the quantification and minimisation of whole life carbon
and the identification of potential barriers to achieving net zero. This will form an
important part of regular reporting through the Benefits Realisation Plan.

6. Background reading/external references
6.1

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Document (August 2018)

6.2

City Region Deal Benefits Realisation Plan: ESESCR Deal Joint Committee report 4
September 2020

7. Appendices
7.1

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Progress Report (June 2022).

Page 33

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 3

Progress Report
Last updated: 20 June 2022

Overall Status
Last Period

Overall Status
This Period

Green

Green

Page 1: Dashboard
Recent Achievements and Milestones
Achievement/Milestone

Date

Dunard Centre Revised Business Case approved by Joint Committee

Mar 22

Benefits Realisation Plan Implementation update noted by Joint
Committee

Mar 22

Financials Summary
*Funding issued by Transport Scotland and SG Housing not included in this total

Page 34

Top 3 Risks (from PMO Risk Register)
Risk

Impac
t

Like
loho
od

Sever
-ity

Cost inflation (materials and labour)
and related government policies, (e.g.
rise in interest rates and changes to
taxation) affects the ability to deliver
projects to the standards required.

4

5

20

Failure to measure, record and
communicate benefits arising from
projects to the standard required.

4

2

8

4

2

8

Objections to schemes delay project or
make project unviable.

Upcoming Joint Committee Meeting Milestones
(expected)

Target Date

A720 Sheriffhall Update Report

Jun 22

Edinburgh Innovation Hub (East Lothian Council / Queen
Margaret University) VAT Reinvestment

Jun 22

Green/Freeport bid for Edinburgh and South East Scotland

Jun 22

Regional Prosperity Framework Implementation Plan

Sep 22

City Region Deal Annual Report 2021/22

Sep 22

A720 Sheriffhall Update Report

Dec 22

Integrated Regional Employability and Skills Programme
Update

Dec 22

West Edinburgh Transport Improvement Full Business Case

Mar 23

Resolution Plan or Mitigating Action

• Regular updating of progress report and monthly financial forecasts to ensure PMO is aware of issue(s) at
an early stage and can raise with Government, Executive Board and Joint Committee as appropriate.
• Regular discussions on finance between project leads and PMO, Directors of Finance and PMO and PMO
and Governments to capture issues arising.
• Change Management process as set out in the Benefits Realisation Plan is being implemented
• Implementation plan for Benefits Realisation Plan was agreed by Joint Committee in March 2022. This set
out how project benefits (outputs, outcomes and impacts) will be monitored on regularly and reported on.
• A Senior Responsible Officer has been appointed who will oversee the work.
• A Benefits Realisation Officer is being appointed who will lead on the work.
• Change management system exists to ensure that changes can be made through the governance process.
• Regular briefings with elected members to ensure they have the full information required to support projects.
• Thorough consultation process through lead partners to ensure that members of public have full information
required, and that their comments can be taken on board before planning applications or business cases are
submitted for approval.

Page 2: Guidance
Project Stages
Stage no.

Definition

1. Define

Business case being developed, and not yet approved by Thematic Board and Joint Committee.

2. Implement

Business case has been approved by Thematic Board and Joint Committee, and is being implemented. In a capital project, this may
be construction; for skills projects this may be establishing a course or system.

3. Deliver

Project is in place and benefits realisation framework to assess if it is achieving its objectives.

4. Legacy

Project has resulted in mainstreaming or improvements to business as usual (impact) that is generated beyond the funded period

Red, Amber, Green
T: Status against timeline set out in business case/implementation plan; B: Status against budget set out in financial plan
RAG Status

Definition - Budget

Action Required

Green

In line with business
case/implementation plan

In line with spend set out financial plan for the current financial
year.

No management action required

Amber

Delay exists but is
considered acceptable by
PMO.

Spend is within acceptable range from what is set out financial plan
for the current financial year. Project lead is confident that spend
will be to profile at financial year end.

Management action is in place by senior
management to address issues, and project is being
closely monitored.

Red

Delay is significant.

Spend is outwith acceptable range from what is set out financial
plan for the current financial year. Project lead does not consider
that spend will be to profile at financial year end.

Immediate action is required by senior management
and relevant Boards as appropriate to address
issues. Issues must be highlighted to Government.

Page 35

Definition - Timeline

Strategic Added Value Score
Score
1
(Low)
2
(Mediu
m)
3.
(High)

Description
• There are opportunities for links with one or two other CRD themes that may add value to the proposal.
• Partnership working with wider stakeholders, to add value to the proposal has not been thoroughly considered, but may be possible, and should be explored.
• One or two of the five ““inclusive growth” measures listed in the Deal Document could be incorporated into the delivery of the project.
• There are opportunities for links with two or three other CRD themes that may add value to the proposal.
• Partnership working with wider stakeholders, to add value has been factored into the business case to some extent, but there are opportunities to enhance.
• Two or three of the five ““inclusive growth” measures listed in the Deal Document could be incorporated into the delivery of the project.
• There are opportunities for links with three of four other CRD themes that may add value to the proposal.
• Partnership working with wider stakeholders, e.g. private/third sector is already taking place and strategic added value effects are clear.
• Three, four or five ““inclusive growth” measures listed in the Deal Document could be incorporated into the delivery of the project.

Page 3: Financial Summary

Page 36
* Scottish Government funded. Transport Scotland taking forward scheme delivery. ** Funding governed by Scottish Government (Housing)

Page 4: Research, Development and Innovation
Theme
Data-Driven Innovation

Project

Bayes Centre

Stage

Last Milestone

Deliver

Sep 18: Opening

B

SAV

Comments

G

G

3

Bayes Centre re-opened in July 2021. Works on site are
complete and the final certificate has now been issued.

A

A

2

Further delay to programme being reported by the contractor.
The client fit out is now due to start on 27th June with
occupation scheduled for 25th July. This is due to constraints
with the supply chain and labour market.

Start on site

May 23: Complete
construction

A

G

3

Construction timescale has been affected by a combination of
Covid impacts and unforeseen structural issues.

Implement

Sep 21:
Commence
construction

Jul 22: Full
DataLoch launch

A

G

2

Usher Institute topping-out ceremony took place in June 2022.
DataLoch on schedule for full launch by end July 2022.

Implement

Aug 21: Mobilise
team to deliver
business plan

Summer 22:
Establish a Centre
for Aquaculture
Genetics and Health

A

G

2

Professor Bruce Whitelaw appointed as Director of the Roslin
Institute. Launch of Centre for Aquaculture Genetics and Health
delayed as Head of centre not yet appointed.

Implement

Jul 21: Complete
hardware
installation

Jul 22: Launch
Regional Data
Haven

2

The technology to deploy on-demand data havens is developed
and will be supporting the DataLoch launch in July 2022.
Research Data Scotland is driving movement towards a
National Safe Haven; any further RDH deployment will need to
be examined in that context.

Edinburgh
Futures
Institute

Implement

Usher Institute

Page 37

Implement

Edinburgh
International
Data Facility

N/A

T

June/July 2022:
Complete
construction

National
Robotarium

Easter Bush

Next Milestone

Jan
2021: Start on
Site

G

T: On Time?; B: On Budget?; SAV: Strategic Added Value score

G

Page 5: Research, Development and Innovation
Theme
Edinburgh Innovation Park (QMU Food and
Drink Innovation Hub)Hub)
Project

Stage

Last Milestone

Next Milestone

T

B

SAV

Comments

Design Team
appointed – May
2022.

Page 38

Edinburgh
Innovation
Park
( Edinburgh
Innovation
Hub)

Legal
documentation
completed – May
2022
Implement

First Project Team
Meeting with
preliminary design
team – 25 May
2022.
Application to
HMRC for VAT
registration of the
operational/construc
tion companies
within the JV.

Present report to the
City Deal Committees (
June) to seek approval
of the reinvestment of
VAT monies into the
project
Preparing and seeking
approval of the
Operational Business
Plan, the Design Brief
and the Marketing
Strategy

T: On Time?; B: On Budget?; SAV: Strategic Added Value score

G

G

2

The report to the City Deal Committees will seek
reinvestment of the VAT monies to address
1. Enhance the project outcomes through targeted
additionally in the design and specification to
enhance the value proposition and which
ultimately improves the experience to the for the
end user.
2. Sustainability - Extend the projects performance
on sustainability and Net Zero Carbon
3. Address the impact of unprecedented
construction cost inflation and the impact this
projected to have on the Hub project.
.

Page 6: Research, Development and
Innovation Theme
Projects in Fife and Scottish Borders
Project

Stage

LastMilestone

Next Milestone

T

B

SAV

Comments
The first building on Phase 1 was handed
over at the end of December 2021 and is
currently being fitted out by the tenant.

Borders
Innovation
Park

Implement

Completion of first
building in Phase 1.

Build-out of Phase 1.

A

G

1

A planning application for road and service
infrastructure for Phase 3 has been
submitted.

Page 39

The delivery programme for Phases 2 and
3 is on hold pending an external
commercial and industrial property review.
Q1 22/23 Completion of Ph1 site
servicing at Lochgelly.

Fife Industrial
Innovation
Investment
(Fi3P)

Dunnikier Business Park,
Kirkcaldy. tenancies secured for 5 (out of
7) units.

Q2 22/23: Conclude Missives for
Queensway Refurb, Glenrothes.
Implement

Queensway,
Flemington Road now fully let.

Q2 22/23: Completion of
business units at West Way,
Dalgety Bay.

Q3 22/23: Start on site Fife
Interchange North, new build
project.

T: Timeline; B: Budget; SAV: Strategic Added Value score

G

G

2
West Way Phase 2, units are now being
marketed, strong interest. Will assess
applications in batches.

Page 7: Integrated Regional
Employability and Skills
Theme (1/3)
Project

IRES
Programme

Page 40

Integrated
Knowledge
System

Labour Market
Analysis and
Evaluation

Stage

Implement/
Deliver

Implem
ent/
Deliver

Deliver

Last Milestone

Next Milestone

IRES board held on 10th
May 2022.

Work continues on Monitoring
& Evaluation and enhanced
reporting; aligning project
outcomes with overall IRES
and City Region Deal Benefits
Realisation targets.
Planning for enhanced
communications incl. videos.

IRES presentation at the
Joint Committee on 3rd
December 2021 was well
received.

T

B

SAV

Comments
•

G

G

3

•

•

Helix system went live
on 21st March.
Legal agreement
circulated to 6 Local
Authority (LA) financial
leads.
IKS updated IRES
board on 10 May.
Delivery & Advisory
Group (DAG) took
place on 25 May.
Helix.scot information
architecture confirmed.

IEE & CCP employer data
to be cleaned and added to
Helix.
Midlothian and Scottish
Borders working towards
Q3 migration, looking at
CLD requirements/ system
development.
Helix.scot content first draft
created and sent to
developer.
Meeting for LA leads to
discuss Helix funding
mainstreaming.

Dissemination of
agreement reached on
the next stage of
research
commissioning in Q1
of 22/23.

Input to Regional Prosperity
Framework (RPF) Big Move
Skills action plan.

•

Tendering Tourism Skills
Research.

•

Regional Skills
Assessment for region
will be published in
April and disseminated
in Q1 and Q2.

•
G

G

3

•
•
•

•

G

G

2

•
•

At the IRES board on 10th May 2022 there were updates and
discussion on future Labour Market Analysis research; Integrated
Knowledge Systems; Community Wealth Building; Housing,
Construction & Infrastructure; and the Quarterly Report and Finance.
IRES Programme Connector is working with Project Leads to further
develop monitoring and evaluation, and feed into the overall Benefits
Realisation plan framework - reporting with increased automation and
online tools. Next IRES Board 16th August 2022.
Helix system went live on 21 March, focus has been on
troubleshooting and supporting users of the system through the
transition, adding reports, building new programmes for 2022/3
delivery and expanding use of system to highlight new functionality
available.
Next phase will migrate in IEE & CCP (Capital City Partnership)
employer, client and vacancy data.
Conversations with Dundee and Tay Cities about potential future
collaboration.
Good progress on helix.scot website, building Information
architecture and planning content.
Meeting for LA leads to discuss Helix funding mainstreaming is
being lined up for June, this will be the first of a regular meeting of
this group to oversee the continuing financial management.
Developed draft brief for research into skills needs of tourism sector.
Partners input sought and incorporated into the brief for tender.
Continued review of Labour Market Intelligence Toolkit through
consultation with Careers Information and Advice staff.
Presentation on the Regional Skills Assessment to the RPF Big
Move 7 workshop provided in May. Six workshops now supported.
Presentation on Regional Skills Assessment to Borders Learning
and Skills Partnership and DYW Borders.
Refreshed membership of the Regional Intelligence Hub with a view
to upcoming research.

Page 8: Integrated Regional
Employability and Skills
Theme (2/3)
Project

Integrated
Employer
Engagement

Stage

Implement

Page 41
Intensive Family
Support

Implement/
Deliver

‘Proud to Care’
project report
complete.
Community Benefits
for Usher Institute
confirmed.
Onsite visit complete
with Dunard Centre to
plan community
benefit schedules.
Coordinated
construction employer
partnership in
response to
Edinburgh College
curriculum
adjustments.
First Regional
Accreditation
Partnership meeting
took place at
Community Trade
Hub.
Stakeholder and
delivery partner
meetings completed.
Website launched.
Consultation work
with families planned
for phase two.
IFS filming plan in
place for IRES Annual
Report.
Initial planning for two
events - sharing
learning from phase
one IFS.

Next Milestone
Finalise (further adjusted)
CLES consultation schedule
and agree contract.

T

B

SAV
•
•
•

Grant awards to be issued to
GoBeyond and West Lothian
Council for CWB phase 2.

•
CWB Toolkit first draft
expected by 15th June.
QMU Food & Drink Hub site
visit in June to map community
benefits pre contract award.

•
G

G

3

IEE Employer Fund
consultation to be issued to
Business Gateway teams.

•
•

First FORTY course to launch
on 27 June.

•

• Comments
Proud to Care – Full report draft complete with summary report
uploaded to IRES Sharepoint for partner access.
FORT programme has launched at Fort Kinnaird Recruitment
Skills Centre. 7 job outcomes secured so far.
First FORTY pre employment course will run from 27 June for 2
weeks, this course has capacity for 10 16-24 year olds from
Edinburgh, Midlothian and East Lothian.
IEE ongoing member partner of CCP Ukrainian crisis partnership
offer, at appropriate time will support the development of regional
job opportunities for refugees.
IEE have coordinated a construction employer response to the
recent announcement of Edinburgh College removing the
National Progression Awards in Construction faculty which has
affected 84 people across the region. A multi employer placement
offer has been created that can support employability provision
for those who do not secure an onward college place.
DAG took place on 19th May with attendance from all 6 LAs.
Scheduling 2 short film entries from IEE activity for annual report;
Career progression & CWB match through the portal.
Cross regional match delivered through ESESCommunities.org
from Fife Supplier with Borders charity.

Flexibility Works seminar for
employers planned.
•
•
•

Complete consultation groups
and sessions with families with
support from delivery partners
re. phase two
recommissioning.
Draft report reflecting findings
from consultation work ahead
of phase two.

•
•
G

G

2
•
•
•

297 individuals registered on Helix engaging with IFS.
228 adults engaging in IFS.
69 young people registered on Helix system, receiving 1:1
support via Youth Workers.
211 Females, 86 males.
75 positive outcomes recorded: 15 FT employment outcomes, 14
PT employment outcomes, 29 re-engagements in education
(young people), 24 progressions to education, 13 engaged in
employability training, 3 carer progressions,
Ongoing Helix support in place for service providers.
Website launched featuring sections on IFS.
Timeline for recommissioning process developed and
implemented.

Page 9: Integrated Regional
Employability and Skills
Theme (3/3)
Project

Housing and
Construction
Infrastructure
(HCI) Skills
Gateway

Page 42

Data-Driven
Innovation
(DDI)
Skills
Gateway

Workforce
Mobility

Stage

Last Milestone

Next Milestone

Imple
-ment

Launch of the new
HCI-supported
‘Places & Spaces’
programme at
Daydream Believers
on 23 May and beX
experiential learning
week 16-23 May with
13 participants.

Summer 2022
graduations of FE
and HE students
supported by HCI
HCI to present at
the Trimble
Technology Lab
Conference, 1416 June.

Team plans have
been updated
following programme
planning session on
31 May.
IoT activities are
underway across 35
schools across the
region.
Engagement with
Midlothian Council on
opportunities for
adult learning in data
literacy.
August 2021
IRES Board –
Baseline
Assessment, policy
review, pilot projects
& next steps.
Supporting SBC
commence pilot
Demand Responsive
Transport (DRT)
service in
Berwickshire –
became operational
in May 2022.

Roll out of Data
Bootcamp over
the summer at
Edinburgh
College.
In discussion
with College
leads about
further
engagement
with third sector
organisations to
help reach
target learners.
August 2022
IRES Board –
Year 1
Implementation
performance
review.
Continue to
identifying other
funding support
we can provide
across the 6
partner regions
with 2022/23
allocation.

Imple
-ment

Imple
-ment

T

B

•

SAV
•
•

G

G

•

3

•

•

G

2

•
•
•

G

G

Inter SGN project, supported by HCI, is the winner of the 2022 Herald Higher
Education Award for Partnerships
Final of the TDUK Design Competition, piloting the Timber TED competency
framework, 23-26 July.
‘The Future of Green Skills in the Construction Sector’ Report published by HCI with
Edinburgh Chamber of Commerce on 31 May; available here https://bit.ly/3awFa9u
and coverage: Acceleration of ‘green jobs’ in construction requires training
commitment | Scottish Construction Now Report calls for training to boost 'net zero'
push (theconstructionindex.co.uk) Training commitment required to meet Scottish
construction's net zero goals | Project Scotland

Planning CPD events for teachers including conference for secondary and primary
teachers in early September.
Team are developing content for inclusion in CRD Annual Report.
Seeking alignment with skills proposals emerging from the Regional Prosperity
Framework.
In discussion with SQA and SDS to promote greater take-up of National Progression
Award (NPA) in Data Science across the region’s schools and to encourage greater use
of modules within the qualification across other subject areas.

•
•

G

Comments

3
•
•
•
•

Developing discussions with Scottish Government through the Digital Intelligence
Network. Working with Improvement Service and CivTech to create a central
database and automation for all postcode data and travel analysis.
Now a member of Transport Scotland ‘Transport Business Partnership’ to develop a
‘Transport Opportunities Plan’ linked into ‘Transport Just Transition Plan’.
Continued involvement in the CEC End Poverty Network of Networks, Fife
Employability Forum, Midlothian Employability Support Group, Borders Young Person
Guarantee Group and Bus Service Improvement Partnership for South East Scotland.
Input into SEStran’s Draft Regional Transport Strategy to reflect rural challenges and
opportunities based on evidence gathered through WFM work.
Progressing procurement of consultant to support SBC 2022/23 pilot to use data to
support a bus network review.
Data Analyst reviewing employment zones across all 6 LA boundaries to implement
pilot schemes. Initial meetings being held with all partners to scope pilot projects.
Continued involvement in the Regional Prosperity Framework Implementation.

ESESCR Deal Progress Report – August 2020
Page 10: Transport Theme
Project

Stage

A720 Sheriffhall
Define

Last Milestone

Transport
Scotland
submitted
request to
DPEA on 28
March 2022 for
a Public Local
Inquiry to be
arranged

Page 43
West Edinburgh
Transport
Improvements
Programme

Define

Initial
Development
of intervention
packages.
Draft and
Finalise Stage
1A Reports

Next Milestone

T B

SAV

Comments

•

Public Local
Inquiry to be
held.

•
G G 1
•
•

Agreement on funding between CEC and Transport Scotland has been agreed
and Stage 1a is underway and nearing conclusion. Consultants are currently
incorporating feedback received from partners on the initial Stage 1B proposal and
will reissue the final proposal for agreement later this period.

Conclude Stage
1A (TPOs and
related reports eg
Case for Change).
Transition into and
mobilise the next
phase of the
project (Stage 1B)
to progress the 5
cases of OBC.

Joint Committee ratified their support for the scheme as published on 3
September 2021, following the consideration of further technical information.
Responses issued to all objections raised against the draft Orders – on-going
engagement with objectors to try and resolve issues wherever possible.
Request lodged with DPEA for a PLI to be arranged – reporter appointed as of
26 May 2022.
Background inquiry evidence preparation is underway.

G G 1

Drafting of OBC
expected Q1 2023.

T: On Time?; B: On Budget?; SAV: Strategic Added Value Score

A further revision to the Transport Planning Objectives has been undertaken, this
has helped refine and reduce the number of objectives, plus the TPOs have been
SMARTened (detailing how they will be monitored, measured etc). The agreement
of the TPOs will consequently result in the finalisation of the remaining Stage 1A
tasks.

The forward planning project recourses for the next stages is underway.
Recruitment forms to advertise for a dedicated Project Manager are being
produced and advanced through CEC recruitment channels (with support from
CRD PMO). The appointment of this PM is expected Autumn 2022 to coincide
with the drafting of the OBC and more resource intensive stages to follow, such
as; delivery of communication and engagement plans, statutory consents,
procurement and construction.

Page 11: Culture Theme

Project

Page 44

Dunard Centre

Stage

Implement

Last Milestone

Commencement of
Pre Construction
Services
Agreement - April
2022

Next Milestone

T

B

SAV

Stage 4 Design
Completion and
Sign Off – July 22

A

G

2

Commencement of
Site Clearance
Works - July 2022

T: On Time?; B: On Budget?; SAV: Strategic Added Value score

Comments

Final Business case was approved by ESECCRD Joint
Committee on 4 March 2022.

Page 12: Housing Theme

Stage

Last
Milestone

Deliver &
Define

Investment
Propositions
drafted.

Discuss propositions
with RHB and Scot Gov
at 1 July meeting

A

Implement
& Define

Dunfermline
received
phase 1
funding

Share learning from
Dunfermline experience

A

Innovation & skills

Implement

Edinburgh
Home
Demonstrator
75-home
Granton D1
affordable
housing pilot
underway

Agree approach to
secure pipeline of sites
from across the region
for 1000 homes.

A

Housing company

Deliver

Draw down
of funds
completed.

Ongoing Delivery.

G

Project

Affordable housing

Strategic sites

Next Milestone

Page 45

T: On Time?; B: On Budget?; SAV: Strategic Added Value score

T

B

SAV

Comments

N/A

2

• Partners will work collaboratively with Scottish Government,
agencies, RSLs and other stakeholders to secure more
investment, innovation, commitment and partnerships to address
the challenges above and deliver at scale and pace

A

2

• Outline Business Cases for sites are at different stages of
development.

N/A

3

• Demonstrator project will look at standardised housing types,
procurement and delivery models to increase offsite
manufacturing and delivery of net-zero homes across the city
region
• Partnership between CEC,SFT, Scot Gov, CSIC, ENU and OSS.

G

1

• The City of Edinburgh Council and Scottish Futures Trust will
continue to share learning and financial models with partners, to
explore regional delivery models.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6.4
Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal Joint Committee

10am, Friday 24 June 2022

Forth Green Freeport Bid
Item number 6.4

Executive Summary
Dr Grace Vickers
Chief Officer, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal
Contact: Andy Nichol, Programme Manager, Edinburgh and South East Scotland City
Region Deal
E-mail: andy.nichol@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4461

Page 47

Report

Forth Green Freeport Bid
1.

Recommendations

1.1

To formally homologate the bid, which was submitted to Government on 20 June.

1.2

To note that the bid was endorsed by the City Region Deal’s Elected Member
Oversight Committee at its meeting on 10 June and that a formal letter of support
from the City Region Deal’s Regional Enterprise Council (which represents
business, social enterprise and the wider third sectors across the region) was
included as part of the submission on 20 June.

2.

Background

2.1

A Green Freeport is a large, zoned area within a defined boundary which includes a
rail, sea or airport. Operators and businesses in the zone can benefit from a
package of tax and other incentives through a combination of devolved and
reserved levers.

2.2

Green Freeports are designed to boost innovation and inclusive growth within
communities, while supporting Fair Work First practices, creating new green jobs,
upholding the highest environmental protections and supporting economic
transformation.

2.3

On 22 March 2022, the Scottish Government, working in partnership with UK
Government, published a prospectus for a bidding process for up to two Green
Freeport designations to be awarded in Scotland through an open, transparent and
competitive process.

2.4

Green Freeport bids must demonstrate that they will contribute to four key policy
objectives:
• promoting regeneration and high-quality job creation;
• promoting decarbonisation and a just transition to a net zero economy;
• establishing hubs for global trade and investment; and
• fostering an innovative environment.

Page 48

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 2

3.

Main report

3.1

The bid for the Forth Green Port draws together a cohesive partnership between
public and private sector partners across the Firth of Forth: including the relevant
local authorities, higher/further education institutions and the private sector.

3.2

The bid is based on the principle that to achieve Scotland’s 2045 net zero target,
urgent action and a credible plan is needed to decarbonise the Firth of Forth.
Across the Outer Boundary, the Firth of Forth accounts for over 40% of Scotland’s
industrial emissions. The Forth Green Freeport can be the driving force of
Scotland’s decarbonisation plan.

3.3

The bid states that the Forth Green Freeport would create a green growth corridor
across Central Scotland and beyond. Under-developed land would be provided,
which would sustainably generate green business growth with export potential
through the nation's logistics centre,

3.4

The following sites are proposed to develop innovative clusters, and deliver supply
chain opportunities in diverse sectors to secure a just transition to net zero:
•

•
•

Leith: To create Scotland’s largest offshore renewable energy hub. Delivering
new manufacturing facilities, port infrastructure upgrades and green incubators
to drive SME and start-up business growth.
Grangemouth: Build on strengths as Scotland’s largest port and principal
export hub and regenerate the petrochemical cluster for a net zero transition.
Rosyth: Support innovative manufacturing and shipbuilding and strengthen the
nation’s agri-bulks hub by expanding and creating new trade routes to
continental Europe.

3.6

The bid was submitted at the deadline of 20 June. Details of the bid were presented
to the City Region Deal’s Elected Member Oversight Committee on 10 June and the
Regional Enterprise Council (which represents business, social enterprise and the
wider third sectors across the region) on 17 June. Both groups endorsed the bid,
and a signed letter of support from the Regional Enterprise Council was included as
part of the submission on 20 June.

3.7

The winning bids will be announced later in summer 2022. If successful, the Forth
Green Freeport submission will be developed into an Outline Business Case in the
autumn and will be shared in draft form with all regional partners. The first Green
Freeport in Scotland is expected to be fully operational by spring 2023.

4.

Financial impact

4.1 The bid states that a Forth Green Freeport would act as a catalyst for the reindustrialisation of Scotland, attracting significant investment into key industrial
infrastructure for the future economy, and growing an innovation ecosystem for

Page 49

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 3

SMEs across the Firth of Forth. It would spread the economic benefits of the net zero
transition across the region, with high-quality, green jobs created in local areas and
skills development for local communities supported.

5.

Alignment with Sustainable, Inclusive Growth Ambitions

5.1 The bid states that the Forth Green Freeport would: make a major contribution to
Scotland’s Net Zero carbon emissions target, support innovation in net zero
technologies including offshore wind, hydrogen, and sustainable aviation fuels; and
build Scotland an export base grounded in green growth.

6. Background reading/external references
6.1 Green Free Ports: Scottish Government website

7. Appendices
None.

Page 50

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Region Deal Joint Committee

Page 4

